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GUCCI AMERICA, INC.; CHLOE SAS; and
ALFRED DUNHILL LIMITED,

Plaintiffs,
-against-
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COMPLAINT

Plaintiffs Gucci America, Inc. (“Gucci”), Chloé SAS (“Chloé”) and Alfred Dunhill

Limited (“Alfred Dunhill”) (collectively, “Plaintiffs”), by their attorneys, Gibson, Dunn &

Crutcher, LLP, for their complaint against MyReplicaHandbag.com, Wholesale-Replica.com,

Replica-Watch-Town.com, Traderinasia Consulting LLC, Kelvin Cho a/k/a Kelvin Cho Yaw Coon

a/kfa “Cho Yaw Koon,” ABC Companies, and John Does (collectively, “Defendants™), allege as

follows:
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NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. Consumers instantly recognize the various trademarks used to identify the luxury
items merchandised or manufactured by or under licenses from Gucci, Chloe, and Alfred Dunhill
(collectively, the “Plaintiffs’ Marks™). For decades, these famous, arbitrary and fanciful
Plaintiffs’ Marks have received enormous exposure in the marketplace. Over the years, millions
of consumers have been exposed to Plaintiffs’ Marks through extensive advertising campaigns,
in mainstream and fashion magazines and other periodicals, as depicted on television and in
motion pictures, on the Internet, and in other forms of unsolicited media coverage. As a result,
Plaintiffs’ Marks are among the most widely-recognized trademarks in the United States, as well
as among the most popular with consumers, which adds enormous value to the officially
manufactured and licensed products that the bear the Plaintitfs® Marks (“Plaintiffs’ Products”).

2. Defendants, who have no affiliation with the Plaintiffs, have attempted to
capitalize on the popularity of the Plaintiffs’ Marks. They manufacture and market counterfeit
versions of Plaintiffs’ Products (the “Counterfeit Products™) in an effort to confuse consumers
into believing that they are buying versions of Plaintiffs” Products or to otherwise compete
directly with Plaintiffs’ Products.

3. To ensure that consumers make the association between Defendants’ Counterfeit
Products and the Plaintiffs” Products from which they were copied, Defendants not only copy the
designs, patterns and color schemes associated with Plaintiffs, but also expressly identify the
Counterfeit Products as “Gucci,” “Chloe,” or “Dunhill” products.

4. Defendants have manufactured and sold their Counterfeit Products without the
permission, authorization or approval of the Plaintiffs. Their conduct is likely to cause, and has

caused, consumers mistakenly to believe that the Counterfeit Products sold and promoted by
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Defendants either are official Plaintiffs’ Products; are produced by Defendants under a license,

agreement, joint ventue or other form of authorization by the Plaintiffs; or are otherwise
endorsed by or affiliated with the Plaintiffs, either at the point of sale or when consumers and
potential consumers see the Counterfeit Products in use.

5. For these and other reasons, Defendants have caused, and unless enjoined, will

continue to cause, Plaintiffs irreparable harm and an incalculable loss of goodwill and damages.

PARTIES

6. Gucci is organized and exists under the laws of New York, with its principal place
of business located at 685 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York 10022. Gueci is the sole and
exclusive distributor in the United States of items bearing the Gucci Marks (as defined herein) on
leather goods, clothing, jewelry, accessories, home products, and related items (collectively, the
“Gueci Products™).

7. Chloe is organized and exists under the laws of the Republic of France, with its
principal place of business located at 5/7 Avenue Percier, 75008 Paris, France. Chloe and its
licensees and affiliates are the sole and exclusive distributors in the United States of items
bearing the Chloé Marks (as defined herein) on apparel, handbags, fragrances, jewelry, and other
accessories (collectively, the “Chloé Products”).

8. Alfred Dunhill is organized and exists under the laws of the United Kingdom,
with its principal place of business located at 30 Duke Street St. James’s, London SW1Y 6DL,
England. Alfred Dunhill and its licensees and affiliates are the sole and exclusive distributors in
the United States of items bearing the Alfred Dunhill Marks (as defined herein) on menswear,

leather goods, jewelry, shaving products, sporting goods, and related items (collectively, the

“Alfred Dunhill Products™).
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9. Upon information and belief, the entity doing business as
MyReplicaHandbag.com, is organized and exists under the laws of Malaysia, with business
addresses at: (A) 1903 60th Place, Suite M 1049, Bradenton, Florida 34203; (B) 0908, Blok
Mawar, Rawang, 48000, Malaysia; (C) Suite 603, Level 6, Menara Pelangi, Taman Pelangi,
80400 Johor Bahru, Johor, Malaysia; (D) 123, JIn, Jakarta, 68000, Indonesia; (E) 135 Qing Chun
Road, Hang lhore, China; and (F) 42 Pang Har Road, Hang Zhou, China. Upon information and
belief, MyReplicaHandbag.com is engaged in the manufacture, distribution, sale and
advertisement of Counterfeit Products.

10.  Upon information and belief, the entity doing business as Wholesale-Replica.com,
is organized and exists under the laws of Malaysia, with business addresses at: (A) 1903 60th
Place, Suite M1049, Bradenton, Florida 34203; (B) 0908, Blok Mawar, Rawang, 43000,
Malaysia; (C) Suite 603, Level 6, Menara Pelangi, Taman Pelangi, 80400 Johor Bahru, Joher,
Malaysia; (D) 123, Jin, Jakarta, 68000, Indonesia; (E) 135 Qing Chun Road, Hang lhore, China;
and (F) 42 Pang Har Road, Hang Zhou, China. Upon information and belief, Wholesale-
Replica.com is engaged in the manufacture, distribution, sale and advertisement of Counterfeit
Products.

11.  Upon information and belief, the entity doing business as Replica-Watch-
Town.com, is organized and exists under the laws of Malaysia, business addresses at: (A) 1903
60th Place, Suite M 1049, Bradenton, Florida 34203; (B) 0908, Blok Mawar, Rawang, 48000,
Malaysia; {C) Suite 603, Level 6, Menara Pelangi, Taman Pelangi, 80400 Johor Bahru, Johor,
Malaysia; (D) 123, Jln, Jakarta, 68000, Indonesia; (E) 135 Qing Chun Road, Hang Thore, China;

and (F) 42 Pang Har Road, Hang Zhou, China. Upon information and belief, Replica-Watch-
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Town.com is engaged in the manufacture, distribution, sale and advertisement of Counterfeit
Products.

12.  Upon information and belief, Traderinasia Consulting is a corporation organized
and existing under the laws of Malaysia, with business addresses at: (A) 1903 60th Place, Suite
M1049, Bradenton, Florida 34203; (B) 0908, Blok Mawar, Rawang, 48000, Malaysia; (C) Suite
603, Level 6, Menara Pelangi, Taman Pelangi, 30400 Johor Bahru, Johor, Malaysia; (D) 123, Jin,
jakarta, 68000, Indonesia; (E) 135 Qing Chun Road, Hang Ihore, China; and (F) 42 Pang Har
Road, Hang Zhou, China. Upon information and belief, Tradeinasia Consulting is engaged in the
manufacture, distribution, sale and advertisement of Counterfeit Products.

13. Upon information and belief, Kelvin Cho a/k/a Kelvin Cho Yaw Coon a’k/a “Cho
Yaw Koon” (“Cho™) is a citizen of Malaysia, with home and/or business addresses of: (A) 1903
60th Place, Suite M 1049, Bradenton, Florida 34203; (B) 0908, Blok Mawar, Rawang, 48000,
Malaysia; and (C) Suite 603, Level 6, Menara Pelangi, Taman Pelangi, 80400 Johor Bahru,
Johor, Malaysia. Upon information and belief, Cho has a direct financial interest in the
infringement described herein in his position as beneficial owner of MyReplicaHandbag.com,
Wholesale-Replica.com, and Replica-Watch-Town.com. Upon information and belief, Cho also
has supervised and been a moving and conscious force behind the infringement described herein
in his role as principal officer and agent of MyReplicaHandbag.com, Wholesale-Replica.com,
and Replica-Watch-Town.com and in directing, controlling, ratifying or otherwise participating
in the manufacture, distribution, sale and advertisement of Counterfeit Products.

14.  Upon information and belief, ABC Companies are companies engaged in the
manufacture, distribution, sale and advertisement of Counterfeit Products, but whose identity and

number are presently unknown.
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15.  Upon information and belief, John Does are individuals who are consciously
engaged in directing, controlling, ratifying or otherwise participating in the manufacture,
distribution, sale and advertisement of Counterfeit Products, or who consciously and directly
benefit financially from the manufacture, distribution, sale and advertisement of Counterfeit

Products, but whose identity and number are presently unknown.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

16. This is an action arising under the Trademark Act of 1946, 15 U.S.C. § 1051, et
seq. (the “Lanham Act”) and under the laws of the State of New York.

17.  This Court has jurisdiction under 15 U.S.C. § 1121(a) and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331,
1338(a) and 1338(b). This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over all other claims asserted
herein under 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a). Personal jurisdiction is proper over all Defendants pursuant to
N.Y.C.P.L.R. §302(a) because all Defendants have transacted and done business in New York,
have solicited consumers in this District, have entered into agreements with consumers and
businesses within this District, and have offered to sell and have sold Counterfeit Products to
consumers within this District.

18.  Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b}(2) because a

substantial part of the events giving rise to these claims arose in this District.

PLAINTIFFS’ BUSINESS AND MARKS

19, The Gueci, Chloe, and Alfred Dunhill brands of luxury products are enormously
popular with the general public. The Plaintiffs’ advertising, promotional and marketing efforts

have resulted in widespread and favorable public acceptance and recognition of Gucci, Chloe,
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and Alfred Dunhill brands of luxury products. Asa result, the Plaintiffs’ Marks have become

famous and highly valuable marks, possessing strong secondary meaning among consumers.

20. Gueci is the owner of the right, title and interest in and to, inter alia, the following

federally registered trademarks and/or service marks:

[ Mark Reg./Serial Date of Registration
No.
GUCCI 876,292 09/09/69
959,338 5/22/73
972,078 10/30/73
1,168,477 09/08/81
1,321,864 02/26/85
NON-INTERLOCKING 1,106,722 11/21/78

GG MONOGRAM

GUCCI CREST 1,112,601 02/06/79

GREEN-RED-GREEN 1,122,780 07/24/79
STRIPE 1,483,526 04/05/88

S
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SQUARE G 2,042,805 03/11/97
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2,234,272 03/23/99
REPEATING GG 3,072,549 03/28/06
DESIGN
. D
9 69
21.  Annexed hereto as Exhibit 1 are true and correct copies of United States Patent

and Trademark Office (“PTO”) registration certificates evidencing Gucci’s ownership of these
trademarks and printouts from the PTO’s website setting forth the status of Gucci Marks. All of
the registrations set forth in Exhibit 1 are valid, subsisting, unrevoked and uncancelled.
Additionally, many of these registrations are incontestable. Gucci also owns common law rights
in the above and other marks for use in connection with the Gucci Products. These registered
and common law trademarks are collectively referred to as the “Guceci Marks.”

22.  The Guecei Marks are in full force and effect. Gucci has never abandoned the
Gucci Marks, nor has Guccei ever abandoned the goodwill of Gucci’s businesses in connection
thereto. Gucci intends to continue to preserve and maintain its rights with respect to the Gucci
Marks.

23. For over fifty years, Chloé and its predecessors-in-interest have produced finely-
crafted apparel and accessories for women. Today, the company offers for sale and sells a wide

range of products including apparel, handbags, shoes, sunglasses, and other accessories. Chloé’s



Case 1:07-cv-02438-JGK  Document 1-4  Filed 03/26/2007 Page 9 of 35

commitment to innovation in design and function, as well as the use of only the finest materials,

has brought Chloé renown as a leading maker of luxury goods.

24, Chlo¢ is the owner of the right, title and interest in and to, inter alia, the following
trademarks and/or service marks that are either federally registered or pending federal

registration:

Mark Reg./Serial Date of Registration
No.
CHLOE 1,491,810 06/14/88
1,513,535 11/22/88
1,925,176 10/10/95
2,745,487 08/05/03
3,198,388 01/16/07
CHLOE IN STYLIZED 950,843 01/16/73
FORM 1,020,289 09/16/75
» 1,103,275 10/03/78
Chloe 1,182,862 12/22/81
78,761,371 pending
PADDINGTON 78,863,562 pending
SILVERADO 78,863,566 pending
25. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 2 are true and correct copies of PTO registration

certificates evidencing Chloe’s ownership of these trademarks and printouts from the PTO’s
website setting forth the status of Chloe Marks. All of the registrations set forth in Exhibit 2 are
valid, subsisting, unrevoked and uncancelled. Additionally, many of these registrations are
incontestable. Chloe also owns common law rights in the above and other marks for use in
connection with apparel and handbags, among other goods. These registered and common law

trademarks are collectively referred to as the “Chloe Marks.”
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26. Chloe is also the owner of the trade name “Chloe,” which has been used to
identify Chloe’s products in the United States.

27.  For over a century, Alfred Dunhill and its predecessors-in-interest have produced
finely-crafied leathergoods and accessories for men. Today, the company offers for sale and
sells a wide range of products including timepieces, menswear, leather goods, writing
instruments and accessories, including lighters and cufflinks, among many other accessories.
Alfred Dunhill’s commitment to innovation in design and function, as well as the use of only the
finest materials, has brought Alfred Dunhill renown as a leading maker of luxury goods

28. Alfred Dunhill is the owner of the right, title and interest in and to, inter alia, the

following federally registered trademarks and/or service marks:

Mark Reg./Serial Date of Registration
No.
DUNHILL 843,270 01/30/68
858,928 10/22/68
858,964 10/22/68
859,052 10/22/68
1,135,644 05/20/80
1,172,665 10/06/81
DUNHILL IN 527,207 07/04/50
STYLIZED FORM 540,389 04/03/51
881,310 11/25/69
- 1,555,840 09/12/89
1,734,900 11/24/92
1,799,883 10/19/93
unni

10
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FACET WATCH — ONE 2,852,116 06/08/04
ASPECT

29, Annexed hereto as Exhibit 3 are true and correct copies of PTO registration
certificates evidencing Alfred Dunhill’s ownership of these trademarks and printouts from the
PTO's website setting forth the status of Alfred Dunhill Marks. All of the registrations set forth
in Exhibit 3 are valid, subsisting, unrevoked and uncancelled. Additionally, many of these
registrations are incontestable. Alfred Dunhill also owns common law rights in the above and
other marks for use in connection with apparel. These registered and common law trademarks
are collectively referred to as the “Alfred Dunhill Marks.”

30, Alfred Dunhill is also the owner of the trade name “Dunhill,” which has been
used to identify Alfred Dunhill’s products in the United States.

31. Plaintifts’ Marks have been widely promoted, both in the United States and
throughout the world. Plaintiffs’ Marks are among the world’s most famous and widely
recognized, and the public and consumers have come to recognize that Plaintiffs’ Products
originate exclusively with Plaintiffs.

32 Plaintiffs each maintain strict quality control standards for all of Plaintiffs’
Products. Customers, potential customers, and other members of the public and industry
associatle Plaintiffs’ Products with exceptional materials, style and workmanship. On

information and belief, many consumers purchase Plaintiffs’ Products because of Plaintiffs’

11
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reputation for quality. On information and belief, Plaintiffs’ Products are among the most
popular luxury products offered for sale in the United States.

33. Plaintiffs display their respective Gucci, Chloe, and Alfred Dunhill Marks and
Products in their respective advertising and promotional materials. To date, Plaintiffs have spent
hundreds of millions of dollars in advertising and promoting Plaintiffs’ Marks and Plaintiffs’
Products, and Plaintiffs, their predecessors-in-interest and its affiliated companies have enjoyed
billions of dollars in sales.

34. Plaintiffs” continuous and broad use of Plaintiffs’ Marks has expanded their
renown and enabled Plaintiffs to achieve fame and celebrity in their various product markets.
Plaintiffs’ respective reputations are a direct result of Plaintiffs’ extensive advertising and
promotion, and concomitant widespread sales, the care and skill utilized in the manufacture of
the Plaintiffs’ Products, the uniform high quality of such products sold under, or in connection
with the Plaintiffs’ Marks, and the public acceptance thereof. Plaintiffs have created invaluable
goodwill throughout the United States and elsewhere by selling products of dependable quality.
Based on the extensive sales of the Plaintiffs’ Products and such products’ wide popularity, the
Plaintiffs’ Marks have developed a secondary meaning and significance in the minds of the
purchasing public, and the services and products utilizing and/or bearing such marks and names

are immediately identified by the purchasing public with Plaintiffs.

THE COUNTERFEIT PRODUCTS

35.  Defendants, without authorization or license from Plaintiffs, have willfully and
intentionally used, reproduced and/or copied Plaintiffs’ Marks in connection with their

manufacturing, distributing, exporting, imperting, advertising, marketing, selling and/or offering

12
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to sell their Counterfeit Products. Defendants have shipped at least certain of the Counterfert
Products to New York.

36.  Defendants’ website freely admits that the Counterfeit Products are “replicas” of
Plaintiffs’ Products. For example, shown below is an image of an authentic Gucci “belt bag”
handbag. The product displayed below bears Gucci’s federally registered trademark GUCCI
name. non-intertocking “GG” monogram, repeating “GG” design, and green-red-green stripe.
See Ex. 1 (U.S. Reg. Nos. 876,292; 959,338, 972,078; 1,106,722, 1,122,780; 1,168,477;

1,321,864; 1,483,526; 3,072,549).

37. Set forth below is an image of a Counterfeit Product offered by Defendants for
sale to the public through the MyReplicaHandbag.com website. The handbag displayed below
has pockets, flaps, and zippers that are designed to appear like the pockets, flaps, and zippers on
the officially licensed Gucci handbag shown above. The overall effect of the design of this
Counterfeit Product is not only confusingly similar to the design of the officially licensed Gucci
product shown above, it also bears an exact copy of Gueei’s federally registered trademark name,

non-interlocking “GG” monogtram, repeating “GG™ design, and green-red-green stripe.

13
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38. Similarly, shown below is an image of an authentic Chloe Paddington Classic
Satchel. The product displayed below bears Chloe’s federally registered CHLOE name
trademark, see Ex. 2 (U.S. Reg. Nos. 1,491,810; 1,513,535, 1,925,176; 2,745,487, 3,198,388),

and trademark PADDINGTON name, see Ex. 2 (U.S. Serial No. 78,863,562).

39, Set forth below is an image of a Counterfeit Product offered by Defendants for

sale to the public through the MyReplicaHandbag.com website. The handbag displayed below

14
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has handles, buckles, pockets, and ornamentation that are designed to appear like the handles,
buckles, pockets, and ornamentation on the officially licensed Chloe handbag shown above. The
overall effect of the design of this Counterfeit Product is not only confusingly similar to the
design of the officially licensed Chloe product shown above, it also bears an exact copy of

Chloe’s federally registered trademark name.

40.  Further, shown below is an image of an authentic Gueci “Chain Large Hobo”
handbag. The packaging and labels for the product displayed below bear Guecei’s federally
registered trademark GUCCI name. See Ex. 1 (U.S. Reg. Nos. 876,292; 959,338; 972,078,

1,168,477; 1,321,864).

15
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41.  Set forth below is an image of a Counterfeit Product offered by Defendants for
sale to the public through the Wholesale-Replica.com website. The handbag displayed below is
designed to appear like the officially licensed Guccei handbag shown above. The overall effect of
the design of this Counterfeit Product is not only confusingly similar to the design of the
officially licensed Gueci product shown above, it also bears an exact copy of Gucci’s federally

registered trademark name on its packaging and label.

42, Similarly, shown below is an image of an authentic Chloe Edith Pocket Satchel.

The product displayed below bears Chlo¢’s federally registered CHLOE name trademark on its

16
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packaging and label, see Ex. 2 (U.S. Reg. Nos. 1,491,810; 1,513,535; 1,925,176; 2,745,487,

3,198,388).

43. Set forth below is an image of a Counterfeit Product offered by Defendants for
sale to the public through the Wholesale-Replica.com website. The handbag displayed below
has handles, buckles, pockets, and ornamentation that are designed to appear like the handles,
buckles, pockets, and ornamentation on the officially licensed Chloe handbag shown above. The
overall effect of the design of this Counterfeit Product is not only confusingly similar to the
design of the officially licensed Chloe product shown above, it also bears an exact copy of

Chloe’s federally registered trademark name.

17
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44.  Similarly, shown below is an image of an authentic Alfred Dunhill watch. The
product displayed below bears Alfred Dunhill’s federally registered DUNHILL name trademark
on its packaging and label as a part of the phrase “A. Dunhill Ltd.,” see Ex. 3 (U.S. Reg. Nos.

843,270 858,928; 858,964; 859,052; 1,135,644, 1,172,665).

45. Set forth below is an image of a Counterfeit Product offered by Defendants for
sale to the public through the Replica-Watch-Town.com website. The watch displayed below is
designed to emulate the federally registered trademark Facet One-Watch Aspect design (U.S.
Reg. No. 2.852,116), as well as the coloration and metalwork of the authentic Alfred Dunhill

watch shown above. The overall effect of the design of this Counterfeit Product is not only

18
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confusingly similar to the design of the officially licensed Alfred Dunhill product shown above,
it also bears an exact copy of Alfred Dunhill’s federally registered DUNHILL trademark name as

a part of the phrase “A. Dunhill Ltd.”

46.  All of Defendants’ Counterfeit Products follow this pattern — each uses the color
scheme, pattern and design of one of Plaintiffs’ Products and bears an exact duplicate of at least
one of Plaintiffs” Marks.

47.  Even though they are of significantly inferior quality and workmanship, the
Counterfeit Products appear superficially similar, and in some cases superficially identical, to
genuine Plaintiffs” Products. The design of the Counterfeit Products and the display of the
Plaintiffs’ Marks communicate to consumers, and consumers are therefore likely to be confused
into believing, that the Counterfeit Products were manufactured, licensed, approved or sponsored
by, or otherwise affiliated with, the Plaintiffs.

48.  Defendants have offered these Counterfeit Products for sale without permission,

authority or license from Plaintiffs and, upon information and belief, such actions were taken in

19
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bad faith with full knowledge of the Plaintiffs’ ownership of and/or exclusive rights to use and
license the Plaintiffs” Marks. At all relevant times and in furtherance of their infringing
activities, Defendants have willfully and intentionally used and continue to use Plaintiffs’ Marks
on Counterfeit Products.

49.  The result of Defendants’ manufacturing, advertisement, distribution and sale of
Counterfeit Products will be to deceive and mislead consumers into believing that Defendants’
products or activities are authorized or sponsored by the Plaintiffs or to cause mistake or to
deceive.

50.  In particular, Defendants’ websites make liberal use of the Plaintiffs’ Marks to
make an explicit connection between their Counterfeit Products and Plaintiffs’ Products. For
example, set forth below are true and accurate images of Defendants” MyReplicaHandbag.com,
Wholesale-Replica.com, and Replica-Watch-Town.com websites describing their Counterfeit

Products as, respectively, “Gucci,” “Chloe,” and “Dunhill” products:

20
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51.  The Counterfeit Products are not genuine Plaintiffs’ Products bearing the
Plaintiffs” Marks. Plaintiffs did not manufacture, inspect or package the Counterfeit Products,
and did not approve the Counterfeit Products for sale and/or distribution. Plaintiffs have
examined samples of the Counterfeit Products and determined them to be counterfeit.

52. On information and belief, Defendants have collectively sold, offered to sell,
and/or distributed at least 424 different types of goods bearing counterfeits of Plaintiffs’ Marks.

53.  On information and belief, Defendants have made use of the services of at least
the following banks, savings and loan associations, credit card companies, credit card processing
agencies, or other financial institutions or agencies that engage in the transfer of real property in

order to carry out, facilitate, complete, or ratify the unlawful transactions complained of herein

23
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or used such entities to hold, transfer, transmit, relay, maintain, or invest profits from the
unlawful activities described herein: (#) Bank of China, including but not limited to Account No.
4766603-0188-121131-3 (Swift No. BRCHCNBJ400) in the name of “Cho Yaw Koon”; (if)
ProPay USA, Inc., 500 Timpanogos Parkway Building, Orem, Utah, 84097, including but not
limited to accounts associated with the designations “Kelvin@traderinasia.com,”
“kelvincho@gmail.com,” and/or “000188057 Specialty Retail Store”; (7ii) MasterCard, Visa,
American Express, and/or Discover credit card services; (iv) Network for Electronic Transfers
(Singapore) Pte Ltd. (d/b/a eNets) and/or Commerce Payment Sdn Bhd., including but not
limited to accounts associated with the reference number SGP06217; (v) PayPal, Inc., 2211
North First Street, San Jose, California 95131; (vi) Western Union Company; and (vii) Inner

Esteem Sdn Bhd. (d/b/a SuperCorridor.com).

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

(Trademark Infringement Under Section 32
of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1)(a))

54.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation in the foregoing
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

55. Plaintiffs’ Marks and the goodwill of the businesses associated with them in the
United States and throughout the world are of great and significant value, are highly distinctive
and arbitrary, and have become universally associated in the public mind with the products and
services of the very highest quality and reputation.

56. Defendants’ actions described above have caused and are likely to cause
confusion and mistake and to deceive potential customers and the general purchasing public as to

the source, origin or sponsorship of their Counterfeit Products, and are likely to deceive the
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public into believing that the Counterfeit Products sold by Defendants originate from, are
associated with or are otherwise authorized by Plaintiffs, all to the damage and detriment of
Plaintiffs’ reputation, goodwill and sales.

57. Defendants’ unauthorized use of Plaintiffs’ Marks constitutes trademark
infringement of federally-registered Plaintiffs’ Marks, the full extent of which is presently
unknown but is substantial. This has caused damage to Plaintiffs and the substantial business
and goodwill symbolized by Plaintiffs’ Marks in violation of Section 32 of the Lanham Act, 15
US.C.§1114.

58. Defendants’ actions described above, including the unauthorized use of Plaintiffs’
Marks in interstate commerce, have caused, and unless restrained will continue to cause, great
and irreparable injury to Plaintiffs, to Plaintiffs” Marks, and to the business and goodwill

represented thereby, leaving Plaintiffs with no adequate remedy at law.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

(Trademark Counterfeiting Under Sections 32, 34 and 35,
of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1114(1)(b), 1116(d), & 1117(b)-(c))

59. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation in the foregoing
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

60. Without Plaintiffs’ authorization or consent, and having knowledge of Plaintiffs’
well-known and prior rights in Plaintiffs’ Marks, Defendants have distributed, advertised, offered
for sale and/or sold their Counterfeit Products to the consuming public in direct competition with
Plaintiffs, in or affecting interstate commerce.

61. Defendants” Counterfeit Products reproduce, counterfeit, copy, and colorably

imitate the Plaintiffs’ Marks or display spurious designations that are identical with, or
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substantially indistinguishable from Plaintiffs” Marks. Defendants have applied their
reproductions, counterfeits, copies, and colorable imitations to labels and advertisements
intended to be used in commerce upon or in connection with the sale, distribution or advertising
of Defendants’ Counterfeit Products, which is likely to cause confusion, or to cause mistake, or
to deceive.

62. Defendants’ unauthorized use of Plaintiffs” Marks on or in connection with the
Counterfeit Products was done with notice and full knowledge that such use was not authorized
or licensed by Plaintiffs. Defendants’ actions constitute willful counterfeiting of Plaintiffs’
Marks in violation of 15 U.S.C. §§ 1114, 1116(d), and 1117(b)-(c).

63. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ conduct, Plaintiffs have suffered
damage to their valuable Plaintiffs” Marks, and other damages in an amount to be proved at trial.

64. Plaintiffs do not have an adequate remedy at law, and will continue to be
damaged by Defendants’ sale of Counterfeit Products unless this Court enjoins Defendants from

such fraudulent business practices.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

(False Designation of Origin Under Section 43(a)
of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a))

65.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation in the foregoing
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

66. As a result of the experience, care, and service of Plaintiffs in producing and
providing Plaintiffs’ Products, Plaintiffs’ Products have become widely known and have
acquired a worldwide reputation for excellence. Moreover, Plaintiffs’ Marks have become

associated with Plaintiffs’ Products, and have come to symbolize the reputation for quality and
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excellence of Plaintiffs’ Products. As such, Plaintiffs’ Marks have attained secondary meaning.
Plaintiffs’ Marks are also inherently distinctive.

67.  Defendants’ use of Plaintiffs’ Marks on or in connection with the Counterfeit
Products, as alleged above, is likely to confuse, mislead, or deceive customers, purchasers, and
members of the general public as to the origin, source, sponsorship, or affiliation of the
Counterfeit Products, and is likely to cause such people to believe in error that the Counterfeit
Products have been authorized, sponsored, approved, endorsed, or licensed by Plaintiffs, or that
Defendants are in some way affiliated with Plaintiffs.

68. Defendants’ actions, including but not limited to their unauthorized use in
commerce of Plaintiffs” Marks, constitute a false designation of origin, false and misleading
descriptions of fact, and false and misleading representations of fact, which have caused, and are
likely to cause, confusion, mistake and deception, in violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham
Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).

09. Defendants’ actions described above, including their unauthorized, false and
misleading use in commerce of Plaintiffs’ Marks on Counterfeit Products and other uses of
Plaintiffs’ Marks in interstate commerce, have caused, and unless restrained, will continue to
cause, great and irreparable injury to Plaintiffs, and to the business and goodwill represented by
Plaintiffs’ Marks in an amount that cannot presently be ascertained, leaving Plaintiffs with no

adequate remedy at law.
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FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Trademark Dilution Under the Federal Trademark
Dilution Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(c))

70.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation in the foregoing
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

71.  Plaintiffs’ Marks are extremely famous and recognizable trademarks used in
interstate commerce in the United States. Among other things: (a) they have a high degree of
inherent distinctiveness; (b) they have been used continuously for decades throughout the United
States to promote many goods and services; (c) Plaintiffs and their authorized licensees have
advertised and publicized Plaintiffs’ Marks continuously for decades throughout the United
States; (d) Plaintiffs have used Plaintiffs’ Marks in a trading area of broad geographical scope
encompassing all of the states and territories of the United States; (e) Plaintiffs” Marks are
among the preeminent marks in the luxury goods market; (f) Plaintiffs” Marks have an extremely
high degree of recognition among consumers; (g} there are no trademarks similar to those of
Plaintiffs; and (h) many of Plaintiffs” Marks are the subject of valid and subsisting registrations
under the Lanham Act on the Principal Register.

72.  Because Plaintiffs’ Products have gained a reputation for superior quality and
excellence, Plaintitfs” Marks have gained substantial renown and reputation.

73, Defendants’” conduct described above dilutes, blurs, tarnishes, and whittles away
the distinctiveness of Plaintiffs’ Marks, and has caused actual ditution and has detracted from the
distinctiveness of the famous Plaintiffs’ Marks with consequent damage to Plaintiffs, and to the
substantial business and goodwill symbolized by Plaintiffs® Marks in violation of the Federal

Trademark Dilution Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(c).
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74. Defendants’ acts of trademark dilution have caused and, unless restrained, will
continue to cause, great and irreparable injury to Plaintiffs, and to Plaintiffs’ Marks and to the
substantial business and goodwill represented thereby, in an amount that cannot be presently
ascertained, leaving Plaintiffs with no adequate remedy at law.

75. Defendants’ conduct has been undertaken with a willful intent to trade on the
reputation of Plaintiffs and to cause dilution of the famous Plaintiffs’ Marks, and this conduct

entitles Plaintiffs to damages and the other remedies available pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §

1125(e)(2).
FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Trademark Infringement Under New York Law)
76. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation in the foregoing

paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.
77.  Defendants” acts as described above constitute trademark infringement under

New York common and/or statutory law. N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law §§ 360-k, 360-o.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Trademark Dilution Under New York Law)
78.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation in the foregoing
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.
79.  Defendants’ acts as described above dilute and detract from the distinctiveness of
the famous Plaintiffs’ Marks, resulting in damage to Plaintiffs and the substantial business and
goodwill symbolized by Plaintiffs’ Marks in violation of New York’s Anti-Dilution Statute, N.Y.

(Gen. Bus. Law § 360-1.
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SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Unfair Competition Under New York Law)

80.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation in the foregoing

paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.
81.  Defendants’ acts as described above constitute unfair competition under New

York State common law, as preserved by N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law § 360-o.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Deceptive Acts and Practices Under New York Statutory Law)
82.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation in the foregoing
paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.
83.  Defendants’ acts as described above constitute deceptive acts and practices and

false advertising in violation of N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law §§ 349-350.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Court:

1. Immediately and permanently enjoin Defendants, their officers, directors, agents,
representatives, successors or assigns, and all persons acting in concert or in participation with
any of them from:

(a) manufacturing, distributing, delivering, shipping, importing, exporting,
advertising, marketing, promoting, selling or otherwise offering for
sale Counterfeit Products or any other products produced by Plaintiffs
or confusingly similar to Plaintiffs’ Products, or that otherwise bear,

contain, display or utilize any of Plaintiffs’ Marks, any derivation or
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(€)

colorable imitation thereof, or any mark confusingly similar thereto or
likely to dilute or detract from the Plaintiffs’ Marks;

making or employing any other commercial use of Plaintiffs’ Marks,
any derivation or colorable imitation thereof, or any mark confusingly
similar thereto or likely to dilute or detract from the Plaintiffs’ Marks;
using any other false designation of origin or false description or
representation or any other thing calculated or likely to cause
confusion or mistake in the mind of the trade or public or to deceive
the trade or public into believing that Defendants’” products or
activities are in any way sponsored, licensed or authorized by or
aftiliated or connected with Plaintiffs; and

doing any other acts or things calculated or likely to cause confusion
or mistake in the mind of the public or to lead purchasers or consumers
or investors into the belief that the products or services promoted,
oftered or sponsored by Defendants come from Plaintiffs or their
licensees, or are somehow licensed, sponsored, endorsed, or authorized
by, or otherwise affiliated or connected with Plaintiffs; and

moving, returning or otherwise disposing of, in any manner, any
Counterfeit Products or any other products confusingly similar to
Plaintiffs’ Products, or that otherwise bear, contain, display or utilize
any of Plaintiffs” Marks, any derivation or colorable imitation thereof,
or any mark confusingly similar thereto or likely to dilute or detract

from the Plaintiffs’ Marks; and
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2.

(5

(g}

(h)

(1

secreting, destroying, altering, removing, or otherwise dealing with the
unauthorized products or any books or records which contain any
information relating to the importing, manufacturing, producing,
distributing, circulating, selling, marketing, offering for sale,
advertising, promoting, renting or displaying of all unauthorized
products which infringe Plaintiff’s Trademarks; and

further diluting and infringing all Plaintiffs’ Marks and damaging
Plaintiffs’ goodwill; and

otherwise competing unfairly with Plaintiffs or any of their authorized
licensees in any manner; and

assisting, aiding, or abetting any other person or business entity in
engaging in or performing any of the activities referred to in the above
subparagraphs (a) through (h), or effecting any assignments or
transfers, forming new entities or associations or utilizing any other
device for the purpose of circumventing or otherwise avoiding the

prohibitions set forth in subparagraphs (a) through (h).

Direct Defendants to account to Plaintiffs for their profits and order that the

Plaintiffs recover their damages arising out of the acts of deception and infringement described

above, and a sum equal to three times such profits or damages (whichever is greater), pursuant to

15 US.C. § 1117(a)and (b);

3.

Award Plaintiffs statutory damages of $1,000,000 per counterfeit mark per type of

goods or services sold, offered for sale, or distributed, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117(c);
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4. Award Plaintiffs punitive damages pursuant to New York State common law (as
preserved by N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law § 360-0) on account of Defendants’ gross, wanton, willful and
malicious conduct;

5. Direct Defendants to recall and remove from all stores, shops, markets, outlets,
catalogues, websites or other channels of commerce any Counterfeit Products or any other
products confusingly similar to Plaintiffs’ Products, or that otherwise bear, contain, display or
utilize any of Plaintifts® Marks, any derivation or colorable imitation thereof, or any mark
confusingly similar thereto or likely to dilute or detract from the Plaintiffs” Marks, that are in
Defendants’ possession or control and all means of making the same;

6. Direct Defendants to deliver up for destruction all Counterfeit Products or any
other products confusingly similar to Plaintiffs’ Products, or that otherwise bear, contain, display
or utilize any of Plaintiffs’ Marks, any derivation or colorable imitation thereof, or any mark
confusingly similar thereto or likely to dilute or detract from the Plaintiffs’ Marks, that are in
Defendants’ possession or control and all means of making the same, in accordance with 15
US.C.§1118;

7. Direct Defendants to deliver up for destruction any and all guarantees, circulars,
price lists, labels, signs, prints, packages, wrappers, pouches, receptacles, advertising matter,
promotional, and other materials in the possession or control of Defendants bearing any of
Plaintiffs’ Marks, any derivation or colorable imitation thercof, or any mark confusingly similar
thereto or likely to dilute or detract from the Plaintiffs’ Marks, in accordance with 15 U.S.C. §
1118;

8. Direct Defendants to supply Plaintiffs with a complete list of entities from whom

they purchased and to whom they distributed and/or sold Counterfeit Products or any other
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products confusingly similar to Plaintiffs’ Products, or that otherwise bear, contain, display or
utilize any of Plaintiffs” Marks, any derivation or colorable imitation thereof, or any mark
confusingly similar thereto or likely to dilute or detract from the Plaintiffs’ Marks;

9. Direct Defendants to file with the Court and serve on counsel for Plaintiffs within
thirty (30) days after entry of any injunction issued by the Court in this action, a sworn written
statement pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1116(a) setting forth in detail the manner and form in which
Defendants have complied with any injunction which the Court may enter in this action;

10. Award Plaintiffs their reasonable attorneys” fees along with the costs and
disbursements incurred herein as a result of Defendants’ intentional and willful infringement,
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117 and N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law § 349(h);

11. Order that any of Defendants’ assets that are held by or within the control of
entities that are subject to the jurisdiction of this Court, be restrained and frozen pending the
outcome of this action so that Plaintiffs’ right to the damages set forth in this Complaint is not

later rendered roeaningless.
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12.  Award Plaintiffs such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

Dated: New York, New York
March 26, 2007

Respectfully submitted,

200 Park Avenue
New York, New York 10166
(212) 351-4000

Attorneys for Plaintiffs Gucci America, Inc.,
Chloé SAS, and Alfred Dunhill Limited
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